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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, good

          3  morning. We're considering two bills today. For

          4  those of you that don't know, I am Councilwoman

          5  Madeline Provenzano, Chair of the Housing and

          6  Buildings Committee. And we will be taking testimony

          7  on proposed Intro. No. 379-A, which is Council

          8  Member Clarke's legislation.

          9                 Welcome. We don't often have you

         10  here.

         11                 This is a local law to amend the

         12  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         13  relation to requiring the purchase of Energy Star

         14  certified appliances whenever appliances in rental

         15  apartments are replaced.

         16                 Also, proposed Intro. No. 383-A, and

         17  that is Jim Gennaro's bill. It's a local law to

         18  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         19  York in relation to mitigating the heat island

         20  effect.

         21                 I hate to say this, but I don't know

         22  what the heck the heat island effect is, but I'm

         23  sure someone will tell me at some point.

         24                 Proposed Intro. No. 379-A would

         25  require owners of multiple dwellings who receive J
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          2  51 or 421-A tax benefits from the City of New York

          3  to purchase Energy Star certified appliances when

          4  they install or repair any appliances in rental

          5  apartments with a new appliance.

          6                 The United States Environmental

          7  Protection Agency and the Department of Energy

          8  certify a wide range of household appliances and

          9  building materials as energy efficient through the

         10  Energy Star program.

         11                 These include refrigerators, air

         12  conditioners, dish washers, clothes washers and

         13  windows.

         14                 Energy Star products are widely

         15  available and generally have little to no added cost

         16  over non-Energy Star products. Even when Energy Star

         17  products are more expensive than conventional

         18  options, these products pay for themselves over time

         19  through Energy reduction.

         20                 The increased use of Energy Star

         21  certified appliances in New York City will

         22  substantially reduce household energy costs, as well

         23  as the City's electricity consumption and air

         24  pollution.

         25                 Proposed Intro. No. 379-A is not
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          2  intended to effect those installations or

          3  replacements that involve the installation or

          4  replacement of an appliance with a recycled

          5  appliance.

          6                 The bill also provides for an

          7  exception in situations where an Energy Star

          8  appliance of appropriate size is not manufactured,

          9  such that movement of walls or fixtures would be

         10  necessary to create sufficient space for such

         11  appliance.

         12                 Proposed Intro. No. 383-A would

         13  require the use of Energy Star reflective roofing

         14  products for all new and altered low and

         15  medium-sloped groups.

         16                 Those portions of a roof covered by a

         17  green roof, small area of decks, or solar equipment

         18  are excluded. An Energy Star labeled roof product is

         19  a reflective roof product that lowers roof surface

         20  temperature by up to 100 degrees Fahrenheit.

         21                 Energy Star labeled roof products

         22  save money and energy by reducing the amount of air

         23  conditioning needed to keep a building comfortable.

         24                 Energy Star labeled roof products

         25  also help to reduce air pollutants associated with
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          2  the use of fossil fields, the widespread use of

          3  these reflective roofing products should help

          4  decrease summer temperatures, peak electricity

          5  demand and air pollution within the City.

          6                 As Chair of this Committee, I wish to

          7  point out that proposed Intro. No. 379-A has been

          8  modified substantially as a result of conversations

          9  with and input from representatives of the City's

         10  real estate community.

         11                 So, I would like to thank those of

         12  you that are here today for your ongoing work on

         13  these bills and for your input, also on other bills

         14  that have been pending before this Committee.

         15                 We'll take testimony today on only

         16  these two pieces of legislation. Anyone that wishes

         17  to testify must sign in with the Sergeant-At-Arms,

         18  and we will hear from only one person from an agency

         19  or a group or whatever. One representative from

         20  whatever the group is.

         21                 We are joined by Joe Rosenberg from

         22  HPD. And let me see, who do I have here?

         23                 Well, I still only have Letitia

         24  James, Councilwoman, who is a member of my

         25  Committee. And Council Member Clarke who is here.

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Would you like to say a few words on

          3  your legislation?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Madam Chair, I

          5  want to thank you for expediting and bringing forth

          6  this piece of legislation.

          7                 This is a legislation whose time has

          8  come. We are aware of the challenges that all New

          9  Yorkers are facing around energy in the City of New

         10  York.  For low-income New Yorkers and certainly for

         11  just about every New Yorker today, the cost of

         12  living in the City of New York has become almost

         13  cost prohibitive.

         14                 This legislation is great for those

         15  who are renting their housing in the City of New

         16  York. It's extremely good for low-income New Yorkers

         17  who are having a hard time making ends meet. It will

         18  provide them with lower energy cost. It's great for

         19  our environment. It reduces energy use and will

         20  improve air quality.

         21                 Energy-efficient appliances are

         22  widely available now, and generally have little or

         23  no cost premium compared with uncertified products.

         24                 When homeowners buy appliances, they

         25  have an incentive to watch energy costs, because
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          2  they pay their energy bills.

          3                 However, typically landlords don't

          4  have this incentive because it's renters who pay for

          5  their own energy. Generally the only concern of the

          6  landlords is the up-front cost of replacing

          7  appliances.

          8                 The current version of this bill

          9  limits its coverage to buildings that receive

         10  certain subsidies for the City, and at this stage we

         11  have reduced the bill's scope from a broader initial

         12  version because we are hoping to achieve some of the

         13  goals of this bill through a voluntary agreement

         14  with the real estate industry.

         15                 I credit and thank the industry for

         16  their willingness to work with us on this important

         17  legislation.

         18                 Let me just say that we are really

         19  challenged in this City to balance the way that

         20  folks are living in our City.

         21                 The cost of living, people are

         22  choosing between whether they're going to feed

         23  themselves, or whether that next Con Ed bill is the

         24  one that's going to be paid.

         25                 This measure will certainly bring
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          2  some relief. It's not a cure-all by any stretch of

          3  the imagination, but it's a beginning, and I think

          4  that will set a standard.

          5                 For those who are receiving subsidies

          6  from the City, this will be the law, but hopefully

          7  it will also be a precedent that other landlords

          8  outside of the program will see the need to utilize

          9  as they work in tandem with the tenants in their

         10  residence.

         11                 So, Madam Chair and my colleagues, I

         12  ask for your support of this legislation in an

         13  affirmative vote so that this will become law in New

         14  York City.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         17  Councilwoman.

         18                 We'll now hear from Joe Rosenberg,

         19  Deputy Commissioner of New York City HPD.

         20                 And then John Krieble, Director of

         21  New York City Department of Design and Construction.

         22                 Joe.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG: Thank

         24  you. Good morning, Chairman Provenzano, Council

         25  Members Clarke, James and Katz. I'm Joseph
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          2  Rosenberg, Deputy Commissioner of Intergovernmental

          3  Relations for the Department of Housing Preservation

          4  and Development. I'm glad to be here to offer HPD's

          5  comments on proposed Intro. 379-A, the bill to

          6  require the purchase of Energy Star certified

          7  appliances when private owners of multi-family

          8  buildings seek tax incentives for new construction,

          9  or rehabilitation of their properties.

         10                 As you know, the 421-A benefit

         11  provides a tax exemption for the construction of a

         12  multiple dwelling, while the J-51 benefit provides a

         13  tax exemption for the upgrading of an existing

         14  multiple dwelling.

         15                 Proposed 379-A requires owners who

         16  are applying for either 421A or a J 51 tax exemption

         17  benefits to Energy Star certified appliances when

         18  installing or replacing a refrigerator, room air

         19  conditions, dish washers, clothes dryer, boiler or

         20  furnace.

         21                 HPD is a strong supporter of energy

         22  conservation, and our programs increasingly

         23  emphasize energy efficiency.

         24                 For example, over the past two years,

         25  HPD's Division of Design, Architecture, Construction
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          2  and Engineering known as DACE, has worked with New

          3  York State Energy Resource and Development

          4  Authority, known as NYSERDA, on a pilot project

          5  which created 200 units of affordable

          6  energy-efficient housing through HPD's neighborhood

          7  entrepreneur program.

          8                 Now we are engaged in extending that

          9  effort to an additional 5,000 units in the

         10  Neighborhood Redevelopment Program, the Tenant

         11  Interim Lease Program, and the Participation Loan

         12  Program.

         13                 The agency has also created

         14  sustainable design criteria, which are included in

         15  all of our request for proposal documents throughout

         16  the agency that have been issued.

         17                 The cornerstone and new foundation

         18  RFPs which were released in late August contain all

         19  of these requirements, many of them mandated. So, we

         20  are already working in ways that are completely

         21  consistent with the sense of what this legislation

         22  is attempting to do.

         23                 These criteria require energy

         24  efficient installations, such as low-flow bathroom

         25  and kitchen fixtures, white roofs and insulated
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          2  apartment doors and windows.

          3                 When light fixtures are changed,

          4  HPD's sustainable criteria now requires an energy

          5  efficient fluorescent bulb which provides just as

          6  bright a light but uses less wattage than earlier

          7  models.

          8                 Throughout our renovation and new

          9  construction activity, we strongly promote energy

         10  conservation.

         11                 Let me offer one more example.

         12                 Last October, last year in October

         13  2004, we announced the opening of 1400 Fifth Avenue

         14  in Manhattan, which is the largest affordable

         15  "green" condominium development in the country.

         16                 It uses 70 percent less energy than

         17  comparable buildings in New York City, and over 60

         18  percent of the building was constructed from

         19  recyclable or renewable resources.

         20                 It is the only affordable housing

         21  project to qualify for the New York State Green

         22  Building Tax Credit, and the New York Chapter of the

         23  International Association of Energy Engineers named

         24  the project the energy project of the year.

         25                 Clearly, HPD is a strong supporter of

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  environmentally friendly and energy-efficient

          3  residential buildings.

          4                 In conclusion, we believe that

          5  promoting energy efficiency in publicly and

          6  privately-owned dwellings is a very good public

          7  policy.

          8                 Because enactment of proposed Intro.

          9  379-A by the Council will underscore the importance

         10  of a goal shared by the Council and the

         11  Administration, we welcome the opportunity to sit

         12  down with representatives of the Council to discuss

         13  logistical challenges posed by the legislation, such

         14  as how it will be enforced.

         15                 But overall HPD strongly supports

         16  this bill and recognizes that initiatives, such as

         17  this one, will save property owners and tenants'

         18  money on future energy bills, and will encourage the

         19  expansion of an effective Energy Star program.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         22                 Before we move on, I would like to

         23  know, there appears to be something going on out

         24  there, I want to know what it is now.

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We need a
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          2  hearing --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No, excuse

          4  me. I didn't ask you to speak.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We need a

          6  hearing --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I did not ask

          8  you to speak.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We need a

         10  hearing now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I did not ask

         12  -- Sergeant-At-Arms, remove everybody that has

         13  nothing to do with the two bills I have on today.

         14  Remove them from this room now. Out.

         15                 AUDIENCE: (Outburst from the

         16  audience.)

         17                 Health homes now. Healthy homes now.

         18  Healthy homes now. Healthy homes now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No. Now hear

         20  me. Because you pulled this little gig, there will

         21  be no hearing on healthy homes. That's it. Final

         22  word. You're done. Out.

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I don't have

         24  any hot water. My sister --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Out.
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          2                 Get them out of here. Call whoever

          3  you have to call.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair,

          5  may I be heard?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No.

          7  Absolutely not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair,

          9  this can be resolved.

         10                 Madam Chair, may I be heard? This can

         11  be resolved.

         12                 May I be heard?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Go ahead. If

         14  I don't like what you're saying, I'm cutting you

         15  down.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I understand.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I don't know

         18  if you had anything to do with this, but if you did,

         19  I am really, really disappointed.

         20                 We had a conversation yesterday. What

         21  I said stands. I will now not have a hearing on this

         22  bill.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair, I

         24  am the sponsor of Health Homes Act and these

         25  individuals have a First Amendment Right to speak to
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          2  say whatever they want.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Not at this

          4  hearing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair,

          6  let me finish.

          7                 Let me also go on to say that the

          8  only thing that they need, and only thing that they

          9  want is a hearing on their bill. And so the

         10  question, and it's a question that I'm asking you,

         11  and I will ask that you answer the question on the

         12  record, for the purposes of the individuals who are

         13  in this room, who then can go about their business.

         14                 The question is: When can they have a

         15  hearing on Health Homes?

         16                 You indicated to me yesterday that

         17  you would schedule a hearing some time in November.

         18  The question I have is whether or not the hearing

         19  can be held some time in October.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: The hearing

         21  will not be held in October. The hearing will not be

         22  held because of this little gig you pulled.

         23                 There was no need for this. We had a

         24  conversation yesterday. And I'm sorry that you and I

         25  are having this conversation right now on TV. It
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          2  will be ended and the police are on the way to empty

          3  this room. And that is the end. I will not even

          4  discuss it any further.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: You assume that

          6  I had something to do with this.

          7                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I live in

          8  Brooklyn, in Flatbush. I've had five ceilings. I'm

          9  disabled. When will you help me, Madam Chair?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Madam Chair.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: My sister is

         12  paralyzed in a wheelchair and she has a fever, too.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: This hearing

         14  is recessed.

         15                 (Recess taken.)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Let's proceed

         17  with this hearing.

         18                 I'm sorry, folks. The first clue

         19  should have been the crowded room, because I didn't

         20  think the room would be that crowded for these two

         21  pieces.

         22                 Sorry, Council Member Clarke.

         23                 We've been joined by Council Member

         24  Avella, Council Member Comrie, and I see Melinda

         25  Katz down the other end.
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          2                 Joe.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSENBERG: I just

          4  want to say that this is, 379-A is a bill obviously

          5  we support, but I referred to some -- an issue or so

          6  that we think is a slight problem, I want to bring

          7  it to the Council's attention.

          8                 As you know, HPD enforces the Tax

          9  Incentive Programs in the City of New York. J-51,

         10  421A are the ones that deal with construction and

         11  rehab of buildings.

         12                 However, the legislation has

         13  enforcement requirements for DOB. I don't know

         14  whether that is just an accuracy, something that

         15  should be thought about, but our view obviously is

         16  that dealing with the enforcement of the energy

         17  efficiency requirements to the tax incentive

         18  programs, that rehab multiple dwellings and create

         19  new housing, it would be appropriate that it remain

         20  under HPD jurisdiction.

         21                 You have DOB, we believe that is

         22  probably just a misprint or something that wasn't

         23  thought of comprehensible.

         24                 So, we're willing to take it away

         25  from DOB, back to where we have it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Is that so?

          3  Okay.

          4                 John.

          5                 MR. KRIEBLE: Good morning, Madam

          6  Chair and the members of the Housing and Buildings

          7  Committee. My name is John Krieble. I am the

          8  Director of the Office of Sustainable Design at the

          9  Department of Design and Construction. I am

         10  presenting testimony for my agency in regard to

         11  Intro. No. 383-A, which we call "the cool roof

         12  bill."

         13                 DDC is not opposed to the bill. As we

         14  have found based on energy analyses performed by

         15  private consultants, that the benefits of cool roofs

         16  on DDC projects are reasonable and significant

         17  relative to their extra costs.

         18                 My only other comment, our only other

         19  comment is, it should be noted that those DDC

         20  projects that seek to achieve the lead points for

         21  cool roofs in the recently-enacted LEED Bill, will

         22  already be complying with this bill if it is ever

         23  enacted.

         24                 This concludes my remarks. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 Do we have any questions?

          4                 Gentlemen? Ladies? No? Okay.

          5                 Okay, Leroy.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I have a

          7  question.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I have a

         10  question.

         11                 What compromises a cool roof, as far

         12  as -- is it material or is it just the slope of the

         13  roof?

         14                 MR. KRIEBLE: The cool roof is really

         15  a surfacing on the roof membrane. Usually a flat

         16  roof. In the City it would be usually a flat roof,

         17  but you can also have clear roofs on sloping roofs.

         18                 So it would affect sloping roofs up

         19  to whatever the bill stipulates. I think it's five

         20  and 12.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right. And

         22  it's just primarily the roof covering itself?

         23                 MR. KRIEBLE: Yes. It's actually the

         24  top layer of material. The roofing membrane would

         25  have a certain coating or color, reflectance.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that

          3  doesn't cover the issue with the green roof where

          4  they're putting plants on roofs; that's a different

          5  type of roof?

          6                 MR. KRIEBLE: That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: How easy is

         10  it to obtain this type of roof?

         11                 MR. KRIEBLE: My understanding is that

         12  these roofing coatings are available, though I have

         13  to say that DDC has not researched this ourselves.

         14                 We are relying upon information from

         15  other sources.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Russell has

         17  just informed me that everything that would be

         18  required is easily available.

         19                 So, apparently Chicago recently did

         20  what we're trying to do.

         21                 Russell is the expert, actually.

         22                 Do you have any other questions? No.

         23  Okay, thank you both very much.

         24                 MR. KRIEBLE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: John, I hear
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          2  you've been very helpful with this piece of

          3  legislation. So, we want to thank you.

          4                 MR. KRIEBLE: Thank you, Madam Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And the green

          6  bill. The green bill.

          7                 MR. KRIEBLE: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: He's the

          9  green guy. Okay.

         10                 We have somebody from NRDC. Kathryn

         11  Kennedy? Okay, certainly easier than it looks.

         12                 And Miles Aiken?

         13                 MR. AIKEN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And you're

         15  testifying on one of these bills, Miles? Do you want

         16  to have a seat?

         17                 MR. AIKEN: At the table?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's it.

         19                 Kathryn, do you want to start?

         20                 MS. KENNEDY: Yes. Good morning, Madam

         21  Chairman, members of the City Council. Thank you for

         22  holding this hearing this morning.

         23                 I'm Kathryn Kennedy. I apologize for

         24  my messy handwriting, which makes my name hard to

         25  read. I'm a senior attorney with the Natural
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          2  Resources Defense Council, NRDC, which is a national

          3  environmental organization with our headquarters

          4  here in New York City on 20th Street.

          5                 We have over a million members and

          6  supporters nationwide, including over 25,000 here in

          7  New York City. And I'll testify briefly this

          8  morning.

          9                 First of all, I'd like to thank this

         10  Committee and the Council for passing the green

         11  buildings bill several weeks ago. That was a major

         12  step forward for green building and energy

         13  efficiency in the City.

         14                 And the bills that are before -- the

         15  subject of this hearing this morning, are also very

         16  important bills for energy efficiency and air

         17  quality in the City.

         18                 Intro. 379-A, and 383-A both

         19  represent modest but significant steps forward in

         20  the process of having New York City use energy more

         21  efficiently, lowering energy bills and costs for

         22  people who live in New York City, and helping to

         23  improve the City's environment.

         24                 I'll speak first about Intro. 379-A,

         25  and I'd like to thank Council Member Clarke for her
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          2  sponsorship of this bill and echo her remarks about

          3  its many benefits.

          4                 Energy efficiency appliances are

          5  really a win/win proposition for everyone.

          6                 When we use more efficient

          7  appliances, like refrigerators, dish washers,

          8  clothes washers, furnaces in our home, we reduce our

          9  own energy bills.

         10                 And importantly, we reduce energy

         11  prices for everyone, because in a State like New

         12  York, where we have competition in the electric

         13  industry, when electric demand goes up, the amount

         14  that we pay for electricity goes up. We need to draw

         15  on more power plants, we need older, more expensive

         16  and dirtier power plants to run, so when we use more

         17  efficient appliances, we not only reduce our own

         18  bills, but we reduce electricity prices for

         19  everyone.

         20                 This is particularly important in the

         21  summertime when we run the risk of brown-outs and

         22  blackouts from very, very high peak electric demand.

         23  And this last summer, Con Ed experienced two of the

         24  highest days on record in terms of peak electric

         25  demand.
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          2                 So, this bill is going to increase

          3  energy efficiency by requiring landlords to purchase

          4  Energy Star appliances under certain circumstances

          5  when they are getting a tax break from the City.

          6                 And Energy Star is a very well

          7  recognized established program by the United States

          8  Department of Energy, whereby more efficient

          9  appliances, appliances that do better than the

         10  legally required minimum, have a special Energy Star

         11  label, and it's been a very successful program.

         12  These appliances are widely available in New York

         13  City, and I can say that as an environmentalist and

         14  also as a home owner. If you go to PC Richards or

         15  any big box store, you will see Energy Star

         16  appliances prominently on display.

         17                 And, so, by requiring under certain

         18  circumstances Energy Star appliances for New York

         19  City multi-family dwellings, we're going to reduce

         20  electricity bills for those consumers, and that's

         21  very important, especially for low-income consumers

         22  who have a disproportionately high electricity bill

         23  compared to their home budget.

         24                 We're going to reduce electricity

         25  prices across the board, as I've already testified.
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          2  And we're also going to address some of the key air

          3  pollution problems in New York City.

          4                 New York City, of course suffers from

          5  smog conditions, which can make asthma worse. We're

          6  all struggling with the problems presented by global

          7  warming, and by reducing electricity demand and

          8  usage in New York City, this bill is going to

          9  improve air quality here in New York City, which is

         10  something the City Council has certainly worked on

         11  over the years and made a lot of progress on.

         12                 And I really commend the Council and

         13  staff for working with the real estate community on

         14  this bill and making it be, you know, one where a

         15  wide variety of stakeholders can really support it,

         16  as well as the Administration, for their positive

         17  comments.

         18                 And we hope that Intro. 379-A can be

         19  passed as soon as possible.

         20                 Intro. 383-A also gets to energy

         21  efficiency in buildings in a different way, by

         22  addressing the heat island effect, which you've

         23  already heard about a little bit.

         24                 But basically in urban areas like

         25  cities, temperatures actually increase compared to
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          2  the outlying areas because we have so much concrete

          3  and asphalt and so many buildings.

          4                 And, so, addressing the quality of

          5  our roof is one way of bringing down those

          6  temperatures, which means that we can reduce our air

          7  conditioning and heating loads.

          8                 Green building, as we've discussed,

          9  is one way of doing that. And New York City has a

         10  number of green buildings and green roofs. Silver

         11  Cup Studios in Queens has unveiled a new green roof,

         12  a roof specially planted to reduce, to insulate

         13  buildings and reduce temperatures, as well as

         14  improve air quality and water quality in a variety

         15  of different ways.

         16                 Madora Carter's organization

         17  Sustainable South Bronx in the Bronx also just

         18  unveiled a new green roof. So green roofs are one

         19  way of doing it.

         20                 But this bill correctly recognizes

         21  that not everyone can have a green roof at this

         22  point in time. So, by taking the much simpler and

         23  cheaper step of requiring the special reflective

         24  coating on roofs is one way that we can mitigate the

         25  heat island effect and help bring down building
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          2  temperatures, just by avoiding the kind of broiling

          3  effect that you kind of get if you're up on a

          4  standard tar-based roof. It's extremely hot and

          5  reflective coatings are one way of addressing this.

          6                 So, Intro. 383-A also has a lot of

          7  environmental benefits, and it will also help us

          8  reduce our energy bill crisis and improve the

          9  environment.

         10                 Unless you have any questions, that's

         11  completes my testimony this morning.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

         13  any questions?

         14                 Council Member Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I actually don't

         16  have a question, I need to excuse myself. As you

         17  know, tonight is Yom Kipur, and there is much to be

         18  done before sundown. So let me wish everyone an easy

         19  fast, a good holiday and happy new year.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If you will

         22  excuse me.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You too.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council
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          2  Member Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do they have

          4  commercial boilers that are Energy Star efficient?

          5  For multiple dwellings? I see one part of this deals

          6  with the certified boiler or furnace, or sufficient

          7  capacity?

          8                 MS. KENNEDY: Right.

          9                 There are Energy Star furnaces that

         10  will cover not a gigantic commercial building, but a

         11  commercial building that has several units in it.

         12                 And I believe this provision in this

         13  bill, to ensure that a product, that products are

         14  available meet the standards of the bill.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So,

         16  that's a qualified yes.

         17                 Do you know what the cut off is? How

         18  many units?

         19                 MS. KENNEDY: I don't actually sitting

         20  here today, but I can find that out.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         22                 Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         24                 Mr. Aiken.

         25                 MR. AIKEN: Thank you very much for
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          2  inviting me to come.

          3                 My questions concerning the bill, and

          4  I hope the gentleman from HPD has not left, was, and

          5  being a ghetto merchant (sic), this is my first

          6  hearing, do these regulations apply to HPD?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No.

          8                 MR. AIKEN: And why not? Sorry, is

          9  that a bad question?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Mr. Aiken,

         11  when you sign up to testify, you testify. We can't

         12  answer your questions.

         13                 MR. AIKEN: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's the

         15  testifying seat.

         16                 MR. AIKEN: Well, thank you for that

         17  clarification. Because these are all right. So, I

         18  have to say something affirmative?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No.

         20                 MR. AIKEN: In a forward direction

         21  without --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No. Make a

         23  statement pro or con on either one or both of these

         24  pieces of legislation.

         25                 MR. AIKEN: Very good. Okay.
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          2                 The con, the statements of findings

          3  and purpose are significantly understating the

          4  plight of low-income to middle-income people,

          5  particularly after Katrina and Rita.

          6                 So, the statistical analysis to have

          7  this have any base as presented in the statement of

          8  findings for me are significantly erroneous and

          9  therefore both bills have to take that in

         10  consideration. I mean, projections now are 45 to 90

         11  percent increase of energy for fixed income

         12  individuals and low-income individuals, and the

         13  little left of middle class individuals in the

         14  American society.

         15                 So, I think that that needs to be

         16  considered before these move forward.

         17                 I'm particularly concerned that the

         18  green roof, or if I read this correctly, the

         19  requirements of this section does not apply to any

         20  portion of a roof that is covered by a green roof.

         21                 Contrary to the learned person here,

         22  I find that egregious in omission, and, you know, to

         23  hear statements that we are ahead of Chicago for me

         24  is significantly erroneous and causes me concern

         25  that the judging of the bill is significant and out
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          2  of whack. Whack, I don't know if that's the proper

          3  word to say here.

          4                 I don't want to get too belligerent

          5  in tone just by mentioning situations, but I've been

          6  in meetings -- I cannot see how the largest, one of

          7  the largest property developers in New York City is

          8  consistently sitting at tables and talking about the

          9  private sector and pounding the table with glee that

         10  they've got still 5,000 units in their pipeline. And

         11  no one can answer the questions as to why the

         12  legislation doesn't apply to them.

         13                 So, I personally am against these

         14  bills, not on the fact that they are, and they are

         15  very, very small steps forward. Very, very small

         16  steps forward, but I'm against these bills because

         17  they do not take into consideration the entire

         18  housing and property market of New York City. And to

         19  me, for us to continually say that these are steps

         20  in the right direction, given that a significant

         21  amount of learned people that we are now 30 years,

         22  30 years into the cycle of danger of global warming,

         23  I vote against these, and I think that they should

         24  be rehashed, and do something much more significant

         25  than a refrigerator here and a tin roof there.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Mr. Aiken.

          3                 MR. AIKEN: Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No, I've

          5  spoken to my counsel. We will sit down with the

          6  agencies and take your concerns into consideration.

          7  And you were called by my counsel Terzah Nasser, and

          8  we appreciate your comments and they will be taken

          9  into consideration.

         10                 This is the first hearing on these

         11  bills. What happens is you have a first hearing --

         12                 MR. AIKEN: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Testimony is

         14  taken, amendments are made, changes are made, before

         15  that -- we're not voting on this today.

         16                 MR. AIKEN: But is there any booklet

         17  that can let me know the process? I mean, you know,

         18  the protocol so that I don't stumble and trip?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You're not

         20  stumbling and tripping, you're doing fine.

         21                 MR. AIKEN: Well, no, I'm not. I

         22  stayed up all night preparing a paper and it cost me

         23  70 bucks, and I find out that it's really not --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, you can

         25  submit that, if you want to. Do you want to submit
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          2  that as testimony?

          3                 MR. AIKEN: I sure do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, we can

          5  do that.

          6                 MR. AIKEN: All right. Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And it will

          8  be put in the record.

          9                 MR. AIKEN: And where is Brother

         10  Jackson? I'm from the Harlem streets?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh. I have no

         12  idea. You may want to ask him that yourself.

         13                 MR. AIKEN: I sure will. I sure will.

         14                 So, I may submit this?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes, you may.

         16                 MR. AIKEN: Okay.

         17                 Well, I mean, I think that's

         18  generally -- the green roof is not included and the

         19  statistics on the basis of putting the bill together

         20  are significantly erroneous, and, therefore, does

         21  not have the importance or the populace as it

         22  should.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Do we have

         24  any questions for Mr. Aiken?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No, but we have
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          2  a comment.

          3                 Mr. Aikens (sic), welcome to the

          4  house of the people. And despite what you witnessed

          5  earlier, we tend to be concerned about the plight of

          6  the poor, particularly the working poor and the

          7  low-income people living particularly in public

          8  housing and housing owned by the City of New York.

          9  And you did a -- you testified I think magically

         10  today, wonderfully. You did a very good job. I'm

         11  sure Council Member Jackson would have been very

         12  proud of you and I'm certain that he would open up

         13  his doors to you and perhaps walk you through the

         14  process here at City Hall.

         15                 MR. AIKEN: I will hold your testimony

         16  to his ear.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         18                 MR. AIKEN: Because it's in his

         19  in-basket, as in Denny Farrell's basket.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         21                 MR. AIKEN: And in Donovan's.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         23                 MR. AIKEN: And the Mayor's basket.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Actually,

         25  he's usually at these hearings. He's usually one of
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          2  the people that sit here with me to the bitter end.

          3                 MR. AIKEN: I know he is. But the

          4  point to me is that holding him to the fire is more

          5  of interest to me, and meaning, again, I find these

          6  -- but I don't know the procedure, but this is an

          7  interdependent problem that the species is facing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I'll also let

          9  him know you were here.

         10                 MR. AIKEN: Thank you, my dear.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         12  both.

         13                 We have Kendall Christiansen and

         14  Romeo Sanchez. Romeo? Romeo, where art thou? You're

         15  not here. Okay, so... There's no Romeo? No Romeo.

         16                 All right, Kendall, you're on your

         17  own.

         18                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Good morning, Madam

         19  Chair, and thank you.

         20                 My name is Kendall Christiansen. I'm

         21  testifying today in my capacity as Senior Advisor on

         22  Environmental Affairs to InSinkErator, the leading

         23  manufacturer of food waste disposers.

         24                 They usually appear before the

         25  Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management
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          2  on matters related to recycling and solid waste.

          3                 But I'm pleased to appear before the

          4  Committee that in the mid-nineties led the debate

          5  over the City's use of food waste disposers, and in

          6  '97 received a positive report from DEP, which led

          7  to full legalization of food waste disposers in all

          8  residential buildings, exactly eight years ago this

          9  month.

         10                 I'm going to abridge my statement

         11  which you have here in front of you, but I would

         12  note that as the Committee -- I would encourage the

         13  Committee to look slightly outside the box of the

         14  Energy Star rating and consider Intro. 100 as a

         15  companion bill sponsored by Council Member McMahon,

         16  that would require installation of food waste

         17  disposers in all the newly constructed residences so

         18  as to aggressively capture the environmental

         19  benefits of diverting food waste from Sanitation

         20  collection trucks, transfer stations and distant

         21  landfills, all of which are steadily rising in cost,

         22  as well as environmental impacts.

         23                 Instead, disposers divert food waste

         24  estimated at 20 percent of residential waste,

         25  through the sewers to wastewater treatment plants
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          2  where 100 percent of what the City recovers as

          3  biosolids is beneficially reused as fertilizer or

          4  compost.

          5                 We remind the Committee that dozens

          6  of cities in the US, notably Denver, St. Paul,

          7  Indianapolis, Detroit and LA, have required

          8  disposers in new residential construction for

          9  decades to achieve those benefits. Nationally over

         10  50 million homes, 80 percent of new homes, including

         11  many that are regarded as "green" and affordable

         12  include disposers as a standard appliance. But from

         13  a late start eight years ago, the City is still

         14  playing catch up to the rest of the US in this

         15  regard.

         16                 Particularly the absence of direct

         17  financial incentives slowed their adoption.

         18  Unbelievably to me, developers would actually tell

         19  me that because the City provides free waste

         20  collection services, that they don't need to worry

         21  about installing disposers, notwithstanding their

         22  modest cost, maintenance-free use and long lifespan.

         23                 In fact, I had a message yesterday

         24  from the leading housing development groups saying

         25  that because they're concerned about affordability,
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          2  they couldn't afford a $100 disposer in the homes in

          3  their pipeline, which is unbelievable to me, as

          4  someone concerned about the cost of solid waste

          5  management in this City.

          6                 But more and more they're catching

          7  on. New residential buildings at Battery Park City

          8  are required to include disposers, Columbia

          9  University has installed them in new residential

         10  buildings, and nearly 2,000 housing units operated

         11  by the Housing Authority now have disposers

         12  installed, using funds provided actually by the City

         13  Health Department's integrated pest management

         14  program.

         15                 And I would note in particular, with

         16  regard to today's bill, seven or eight years ago

         17  when disposers became fully legal, that the City and

         18  State included disposers under the guidelines of

         19  individual apartment improvements, and J 51 for the

         20  benefits that they offer.

         21                 Again, the fact that electricity is

         22  not free, helps to encourage the purchase of Energy

         23  Star appliances already, so let me answer the

         24  question of why there isn't an Energy Star category

         25  for disposers when there are over 40 other
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          2  categories of appliances. The answer is both simple

          3  and surprising.

          4                 In normal use, the disposer uses so

          5  little electricity to operate --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Mr.

          7  Christiansen, I have to ask you to stay in the

          8  realm. I know, you know, you're touting the other

          9  piece of legislation, but we're only taking

         10  testimony on these two pieces of legislation. So, I

         11  have to ask you to stay --

         12                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Well, I'm just

         13  drawing the connection between the two.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         15                 I think you've made that point, so if

         16  you could --

         17                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Well, if I could

         18  make the connection between the two.

         19                 That there is not an Energy Star

         20  category --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: He's wearing

         22  an InSinkErator shirt, and that's just taking it a

         23  step too far.

         24                 I can understand --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: What kind of
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          2  shirt is he wearing?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: InSinkErator.

          4  The sweater he has on.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, I can't

          6  see that far.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry, I

          8  can.

          9                 So, I mean, you know, he's being more

         10  polite about it, but he's here advocating a separate

         11  bill.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That's my

         13  point. And that you can't do.

         14                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Well, I'm glad you

         15  can see that point.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm concerned,

         17  you know, --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And also the

         19  bill you're advocating wouldn't have a hearing in

         20  this Committee, so it's kind of moot.

         21                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Well, again, I

         22  early on suggested that the Committee consider this

         23  as a companion bill and work with Council Member

         24  Gennaro to accomplish it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, your
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          2  point has been made. So, unless you want to give

          3  definite testimony on either one pro and con on the

          4  other pieces of legislation.

          5                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Well, I would

          6  conclude with one related comment then.

          7                 I'll just remind the Council that the

          8  City had an innovative program in the '90s that

          9  offered a marriage between requirement for

         10  water-conserving appliances and a financial

         11  incentive for their installation. That was the

         12  low-flow toilet and showerhead installation rebate

         13  program offered by DEP.

         14                 So, as you look at ways to encourage

         15  the actual purchase and installation of

         16  energy-efficient and environmentally beneficial --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Again, that

         18  would not be held in my committee either. It would

         19  be held in the Environmental Protection Committee.

         20                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Thank you very much

         21  for your time this morning.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         23                 Do we have any questions?

         24                 Okay, these two pieces -- yes, what?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I know you've
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          2  had a rough morning, Madam Chair. And I don't want

          3  to exacerbate it. I just want to simply thank you

          4  for this first hearing on 379-A. It's my hope that

          5  this Committee will speedily have the next hearing

          6  so that we can have this legislation passed.

          7                 I think this is something that is

          8  certainly a win/win for everyone, all parties

          9  involved. And I want to thank Russell Unger, who is

         10  sitting next to me. He has been a constant support

         11  and a real champion in terms of environmental

         12  issues.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes, he's

         14  kind of our green guy.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: He's our green

         16  guy. And his energy and his interest in this area

         17  has been a real support to our City, and certainly

         18  to this Legislature, as we look at how we move to

         19  the next level here.

         20                 So, I want to thank you about that.

         21  And I want to say, Madam Chair, I know you are a

         22  no-nonsense woman, and I know what happened here

         23  this morning was something that is not within the

         24  realm of the way that you conduct business. My hope

         25  is that when you have a chance to sort of simmer
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          2  down, that you will have another conversation with

          3  Council Member James, because I think the issue that

          4  the legislation addresses is something that we

          5  really need to consider in this City.

          6                 So, I want to just ask that when you

          7  have an opportunity to sort of sit back and have a

          8  conversation --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Point taken.

         10  Point taken.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         12  much, Madam Chair.

         13                 Thank you, everyone.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: These two

         15  pieces of legislation will be laid over. And I want

         16  to thank Terzah, and, of course, the green man.

         17                 This hearing is adjourned.

         18                 (The following written testimony was

         19  read into the record verbatim.)

         20

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  Miles C. Aiken

         24

         25
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          2  SUBJECT: THE EFFECTS OF GREEN AND DESIGN BUILDING

          3  STANDARDS IN NEW YORK CITY, PROPOSED Int. 383-A,

          4  Int. No. 379-A,, SUSTAINABLE DISTRICT AND REGIONAL

          5  DESIGN AND THEIR RELATIONSHIP TO THE AFFORDABLE

          6  HOUSING RENOVATION PROGRAMS/POLICIES OF HPD AND

          7  UHAB, THE ECONOMIC STABILITY OF THE LOW AND MIDDLE

          8  INCOME NEW YORKER AND THE REGIONAL, NATIONAL AND

          9  GLOBAL ASPIRATION OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK

         10                 1) Combined Statement and Findings of

         11  Int. No. 383-A and Int. No. 379-A.

         12                 "Home electricity and gas expenses

         13  represent a substantial cost for many low-income

         14  (and middle income) New Yorkers in rental

         15  apartments. Nationally in 1997, households in

         16  multi-family buildings spent an average of $848 per

         17  year on energy. Since much of New York City's

         18  electricity is produced within the City, energy

         19  consumption translates directly into greater local

         20  pollution, including emissions of sulfur dioxide,

         21  nitrogen oxides, particulate matter, carbon dioxide

         22  and mercury.

         23                 These pollutants contribute to

         24  respiratory disease, heart disease, smog, acid rain

         25  and climate change. As energy demand rises, so does
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          2  our reliance on dirty, inefficient power plants and

          3  the city and nation's dependence on foreign oil and

          4  natural gas. New York City is approximately two

          5  degrees centigrade hotter than surrounding areas and

          6  this heat island effect is responsible for an

          7  estimated 5.4% of peak electricity demand. ONE CAUSE

          8  (my emphasis, what are the others?) Of the heat

          9  island effect is the many-tarred roofs and roadways

         10  in the city that attract and retain heat.

         11                 If the City's dark roofs were

         12  replaced with more reflective ones, it could lead to

         13  net savings of $16 million in energy costs annually

         14  for residents and businesses". These statements and

         15  findings are no longer applicable to today's rising

         16  cost market for energy. The average household spend

         17  of $848 per year in energy will increase anywhere

         18  from 45% to 90% depending on the type of energy and

         19  the location within the United States. This in

         20  addition to rising mortgage costs, higher real

         21  estate taxes and property insurance. New York is

         22  predicted to a "very cold winter" coming. See

         23  attached US, 10/7/05 money line article.

         24  Unfortunately Proposed Int. N. 383-A does not apply

         25  to a "Green Roof" and there for there can be no
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          2  savings from improved energy savings in the both the

          3  winter and summer. The fixed Income and low income

          4  households will be hardest hit.

          5                 The TIL PROGRAM of HPD/UHAB

          6                 The educational cooperative training

          7  for the Till program as presented by HPD in its

          8  booklet is quite extensive and is well thought out.

          9  The structure of the courses is obviously

         10  evolutionary from the simple to the complex. However

         11  Green Buildings do not come up until Course 504.

         12  Course 503 covers the scope of Architectural Plans,

         13  with budget for renovation

         14                 But essentially the TIL program is

         15  one of which we HPD and UHAB know what is best for

         16  you, the tenant. We will give you the building that

         17  we wish to give to you, the tenant. We will train

         18  you to survive in the building which we designed and

         19  renovated. In my initial tenants meeting with UHAB I

         20  was personally told, in front of the tenants

         21  association, that I would never get the

         22  architectural plans, budgets and contracts for the

         23  renovation process. Which begs the question, what

         24  were the rent increases for? To fund the renovation?

         25                 It did not make any sense to me to
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          2  study purely theory without the practical knowledge

          3  that actual contracts at hand could give.

          4                 What I am seeing is that tenants have

          5  to pay more to leave in apartments that they don't

          6  want to (sometimes), throw belongings away when they

          7  have to move into smaller apartments during

          8  temporary relocation and then come back to a

          9  building that was designed by someone else, with

         10  poor materials, without color, and obsolete design,

         11  given the current energy cost cycle.

         12                 Therefore I am hereby calling for a

         13  moratorium of HPD/UHAB renovation of 518/514/504

         14  West 148th Street and in District 7 pending agreed

         15  sustainable design standards. It is very important

         16  to remember that Harlem is a low income district

         17  with the average income of $22,000 a year.

         18                 It is quite possible that the

         19  cooperatives in past UHAB constructed building will

         20  financially collapse given the obsolete construction

         21  values and the rising energy market cost.

         22                 I am presently the only tenant left

         23  in a gutted, powerless, waterless, building in the

         24  TIL program awaiting clear written relocation

         25  policies from UHAB.
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          2                 WEST HARLEM MAY HAVE AN UNIQUE

          3  OPPORTUNITY TO LEAD NEW YORK CITY TO DISTRICT AND

          4  CITYWIDE SUSTAINABLE DESIGN.

          5                 It would appear that West Harlem may

          6  have a unique opportunity to lead New York City and

          7  its sister districts to more a sustainable

          8  environment throughout New York City. There are a

          9  number of individual, but related projects

         10  percolating in the district. Columbia University is

         11  planning a campus expansion into MANHATTANVILLE in

         12  West Harlem. Columbia University calls the area a

         13  "convening place for Global Perspectives and New

         14  York Citizenship"

         15                 The proposed area of development

         16  comprises approximately 18 acres and extends roughly

         17  from the south side of west 125 the street to 133rd

         18  street and from Broadway to Twelfth Avenue. Also

         19  included are properties on the east side of Broadway

         20  from west 131st to 134th street between Broadway and

         21  Old Broadway.

         22                 The object is to integrate the

         23  Columbia University expansion into the West Harlem

         24  Sustainable Design Philosophy.

         25                 The University also could be useful
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          2  to study the financial viability of the cooperatives

          3  in District 7 given the new energy cost picture,

          4  past construction values and the new sustainable

          5  design construction cost.

          6                 See attached Columbia map.

          7                 The Earth Institute of Columbia

          8  University has teamed up with U.N. Habitat, Habitat

          9  for Humanity-NYC, and the Rockefeller Foundation to

         10  promote housing solutions from New York to New

         11  Orleans to New Delhi. At a recent event in Harlem

         12  the aim was the linking of urban poverty problems in

         13  New York City to those recently highlighted in the

         14  aftermath of Hurricane Katrina as well those facing

         15  other cities around the world. Mr. Eliot Sclar, the

         16  director of sustainable urban development at

         17  Columbia University informed the Sun newspaper, that

         18  affordable housing was becoming a severe problem in

         19  New York, Rome, Madrid and around the world. I

         20  contend it should all be sustainable affordable

         21  housing. Otherwise the call for affordable housing

         22  in the face of Hurricane Katrina has no meaning.

         23  Have the Earth Institute join into the sustainable

         24  design of West Harlem and link it globally.

         25                 There is an independent sustainable
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          2  economic development consulting non-profit called

          3  WE-ACT in West Harlem, which is very active in

          4  Harlem.

          5                 The West Harlem Waterfront Access

          6  Project "Take Me To The River" is an exciting

          7  project with the object to give economic

          8  development, waterfront access and environmental

          9  quality to West Harlem.

         10                 COUNCILMEMBER ROBERT JACKSON

         11                 Councilmember Robert Jackson, in

         12  1991, then community school board president in

         13  district 6, formed "Campaign for Fiscal Equity", an

         14  organization that included parents, advocates and

         15  numerous school boards across the city. CFE filed

         16  suit in 1993 in State Supreme Court challenging the

         17  constitutionality of New York State's educational

         18  funding system. On January 10. 2001 State Supreme

         19  Court Justice Leland ruled in favor of CFE, ordering

         20  the state government to reform its school funding

         21  system. Governor Pataki appealed, but the State

         22  Court of Appeals, ruled in support of CFE in June

         23  2003. On November 30, 2004, a panel awarded New York

         24  City $%5.6 billion in school aid. Councilmember

         25  Jackson is persisting to see that the children,
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          2  teachers and schools of New York City get the

          3  resources they needed to succeed.

          4                 I now call on Councilmember Jackson

          5  and the committee to lead the city again. In

          6  Sustainable Design for district 7 and the city of

          7  New York. Through his foresight he had funded an

          8  environmental justice center in West Harlem. This is

          9  a partnership of the District 7, WE-ACT, a

         10  non-profit environmental and urban design agency and

         11  Turner Construction to educate the community in

         12  sustainable design.

         13                 He has supported the proposed

         14  renovation of the West Harlem/Hamilton Heights

         15  Waterfront Access Study, "Take Me To The River"

         16  which has its top objective to strengthen the

         17  neighborhood's gateway and its core residential and

         18  retail areas in terms of their economic development,

         19  waterfront access and environmental quality.

         20                 518 West 148th Street, 514 west 148th

         21  street, and 504/6 west 148th street is in the direct

         22  corridor to the West Harlem Waterfront project/

         23  "Take Me To The River" It makes no sense to

         24  sustainable design a park and keeps obsolete values

         25  in your housing.
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          2                 The neighborhood should be

          3  sustainable designed.

          4                 See attached map of "Take Me To The

          5  River"

          6                 I call on the committee and council

          7  to support Councilmember Jackson with all means to

          8  bring on line ASAP the environmental justice

          9  community Center in West Harlem. The City Council

         10  has already funded the NY Chapter of the AIA in Geo

         11  Thermo Heating.

         12                 I call on the committee and council:

         13                 1) To support a study with the A.I.A.

         14  N.Y. chapter, District 7, WE-ACT and the Earth

         15  Institute of Columbia University to explore

         16  geo-Thermal Heating in West Harlem.

         17                 2) To support a study of data from

         18  the City of Chicago and Globally on Green Roofs. The

         19  City of Chicago is well ahead of New York in this

         20  field. This study would again involve the above

         21  parties.

         22                 3) To support a study of economic and

         23  design feasibility of the Housing cooperatives of

         24  West Harlem in relation to past UHAB renovations and

         25  future sustainable Designed renovations with the
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          2  above parties participating.

          3                 4) To support a moratorium of UHAB

          4  present construction of 518/514/504 west 148th

          5  Street pending sustainable designed decisions of

          6  renovation.

          7                 5) Support a comparative study of

          8  funding authorization for energy efficiency

          9  programs, city to city, state to state, country to

         10  country. The above parties would participate.

         11                 WILL GREAT CITIES SURVIVE

         12                 Urbanism must be approached not as a

         13  largely western phenomenon but as one that has worn

         14  many different guises reflective of some greater

         15  universal human aspirations. Greek Historian

         16  Herodotus in the 5th century wrote of cities, "For

         17  most of those which were great once and small today.

         18  And those that used to be small were great in my own

         19  time. Knowing therefore that human prosperity never

         20  abides long in the same place; I shall pay attention

         21  to both alike.

         22                 We are evolving into a dual city of

         23  the cosmopolitan elite and a large class o those

         24  who, usually for low wages, serve the elite's need.

         25                 A successful city must be home not
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          2  only to museums, restaurants, and edgy clubs, but to

          3  specialized industries, small business, schools and

          4  neighborhoods capable of renewing themselves for the

          5  next generation.

          6                 Lets make West Harlem an example of a

          7  neighborhood we would like to see city wide.

          8                 Miles Aiken, Acting Chair, 518

          9  Tenants Association.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 11:10 a.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 12th day of October 2005.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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